
 

 

Enterprise and Business Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 3 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 

21 January 2015  

 

Meeting time: 

09.15 

 

For further information please contact:  

Siân Phipps 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565 

SeneddEcon@Assembly.Wales  

  

 

Agenda 

 

 

Pre-meeting (09.15-09.25) 

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions   

 

2 EU update (09.25-09.55) (Pages 1 - 12)  

Gregg Jones, Head of EU Office, National Assembly for Wales 

David Hughes, Head of Office of the European Commission in Wales Attached 

Documents:  

EBC(4)-02-15 (p.1) EU Update 

Break (09.55-10.00) 

3 EU Follow-up scrutiny (10.00-11.30) (Pages 13 - 35)  

Jane Hutt, Minister for Finance and Government Business 

Damien O’Brien, Chief Executive, WEFO 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



 

 

Rob Halford, Head of Planning and Strategy, Welsh Government 

Jeff Andrews, Specialist Policy Adviser, Welsh Government 

Attached Documents:  

Research Brief 

EBC(4)-02-15 (p.2) - Minister for Finance and Government Business 

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public 

from the remainder of the meeting (11.30) 

 

De-brief in private (11.30-11.40) 

5 Forward Work Programme (11.40-12.00) (Pages 36 - 41) 

Attached Documents:  

EBC(4)-02-15 (p.3) Summer 2015 Forward Work Programme 



 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 1 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 

 

Enterprise and Business Committee 

 

EU update session 

 

Background paper  

 

Date of session: 21 January 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This paper has been produced by Gregg Jones, Head of the EU Office, for an EU update 

session with Enterprise and Business Committee. It is the first EU update session since the 

2014 European Parliament elections and the appointment of the new European 

Commission, and therefore includes background information on these key institutional 

developments, as well as looking at specific dossiers on the EU agenda of relevance to the 

Committee’s remit. 

For further information contact Gregg: 

Tel. 0032 2 226 6692 

Email: Gregg.Jones@wales.gov.uk 

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2

mailto:Gregg.Jones@wales.gov.uk


 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 2 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents 

 

 

1. EU institutional changes ........................................................................................................................ 3 

2. European Commission’s priorities ................................................................................................... 3 

2.1. President Juncker’s Political Guidelines ....................................................................... 3 

2.2. European Investment Plan .......................................................................................... 4 

2.3. Work Programme 2015 ............................................................................................... 6 

3. Latvian EU Presidency (of the Council) .......................................................................................... 8 

4. EU Funding ..................................................................................................................................................... 8 

5. Eurozone crisis, reform of economic governance, Banking Union ................................. 8 

6. Other areas of potential interest ....................................................................................................... 9 

6.1. Working time directive ................................................................................................ 9 

6.2. Murco oil refinery ..................................................................................................... 10 

7. Committee of the Regions................................................................................................................... 10 

Pack Page 2



 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 3 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 

1. EU institutional changes 

2014 was a year of institutional change for the EU, with the European Parliament elections 

in May, followed by the process of nominating and appointing a new President of the 

European Commission, former Luxembourg premier Jean-Claude Juncker, and College of 

Commissioners, which took office on 1 November. To complete the picture, 2014 also saw 

the appointment of a new President of the European Council, former Polish premier Donald 

Tusk, who replaced Herman Van Rompuy and took up post on 1 December. 

With regard to the European Parliament there is a new cohort of MEPs, including one new 

Welsh MEP (the other three being re-elected), new Committee Chairs (and Vice Chairs), new 

membership of Committees, a new political balance and so forth. This will have 

implications to the points of interaction and points of contact between the Committee and 

the European Parliament on those dossiers of most interest. 

Section 2 looks in more detail at the new strategic priorities of the European Commission, 

as well as the dossiers of most relevance in the European Commission Work Programme. 

Sections 3 to 7 cover a number of other issues of relevance to the Committee’s work as 

part of a broader update on EU-related activities. 

2. European Commission’s priorities 

2.1. President Juncker’s Political Guidelines
1

 

In July 2015 Jean-Claude Juncker presented the ‘political guidelines’ for his mandate as 

European Commission, under the heading an ‘Agenda for Jobs, Growth, Fairness and 

Democratic Change’. Ten core priorities are identified for 2015-2019, with a central focus 

on jobs and economic growth, whilst Juncker also makes clear his intention to concentrate 

EU level intervention on these priorities, and take a less interventionist approach outside of 

these: 

My agenda will focus on ten policy areas. My emphasis will be on concrete results in these 

ten areas. Beyond that, I will leave other policy areas to the Member States where they are 

more legitimate and better equipped to give effective policy responses at national, regional 

or local level, in line with the principles of subsidiarity and proportionality. I want a 

European Union that is bigger and more ambitious on big things, and smaller and 

more modest on small things. 

Given the emphasis on jobs and growth most of these priorities are of relevance to the 

Enterprise and Business Committee. Notably: 

 A New Boost for Jobs, Growth and Investment: the ‘Juncker’ Investment Plan is the 

central plank of this (see section 2.2. below) 

 A Connected Digital Single Market: as with energy/climate the digital economy is seen 

as a key potential source of economic growth, with the Commission aiming to overcome 

fragmentation and barriers that prevent an effective Digital Single Market from 

developing 

                                           

1

 See http://ec.europa.eu/commission/2014-2019/president_en  

Pack Page 3

http://ec.europa.eu/commission/2014-2019/president_en


 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 4 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 

 A Resilient Energy Union with a Forward-Looking Climate Change Policy: this has a 

particularly strong economic focus (energy/climate seen as growth areas for the 

economy) 

 A Deeper and Fairer Internal Market with a Strengthened Industrial Base: aim for 

industry to account for 20% of EU GDP (currently it is 16%) 

 A Deeper and Fairer Economic and Monetary Union: building on the reforms introduced 

under the previous Commission (see section 5 for more on this) 

 A Reasonable and Balanced Free Trade Agreement with the U.S: i.e. concluding the 

ongoing TTIP negotiations (see Research Service blog on TTIP for more background 

on state of play and concerns/issues in this discussion).
2

 

2.2. European Investment Plan 

As noted, one of the early ‘big ideas’ that President Juncker has been pushing is the 

creation of a new European Investment Plan, aimed at kick-starting economic recovery 

across the EU economy. Juncker published his plans for this initiative at the end of 

November
3

, which focuses on delivering a €315bn investment package between 2015-17. 

The Assembly’s Research Service published a blog on the proposals (see InBrief web-

pages), and some of the highlights are reproduced here. 

President Juncker’s investment plan has three main strands: 

 The creation of a new European Fund for Strategic Investments (EFSI). This fund is 

intended to mobilise at least a €315 billion over the next 3 years, using an investment 

of €21 billion of public money: €15bn from the EU budget and €6bn from the European 

Investment Bank (EIB) 

 A “Project Pipeline” of viable projects awaiting investment, to allow public and private 

investors to access information about these projects. These project proposals would 

receive technical assistance from Commission staff. 

 A “Road Map” to remove red-tape and other barriers that hold back investment in 

Europe. 

The European Commission has estimated that these proposals could contribute up to €410 

billion to EU GDP over the next three years, and create up to 1.3 million new jobs. 

Central to these proposals is the European Fund for Strategic Investments (EFSI). The plan is 

to use this fund to help finance projects in key strategic areas such as energy, transport, 

broadband, education, research and innovation. Member States have been asked to submit 

lists of projects to the European Commission/European Investment Bank Task Force 

running the Fund, having selected projects according to the following three criteria: 

 

                                           

2

 TTIP is currently the subject of inquiries in two Committees in the House of Commons: Business, Innovation 

and Skills Committee and the Environmental Audit Committee; and in the Scottish Parliament’s European 

and External Affairs Committee. The House of Lords External Affairs Sub-Committee undertook an inquiry into 

TTIP that reported in May 2014. 

3

 See http://europa.eu/rapid/press-release_IP-14-2128_en.htm 

Pack Page 4

https://assemblyinbrief.wordpress.com/2015/01/05/transatlantic-trade-and-investment-partnership-are-welsh-public-services-safe-on-the-altar-of-free-trade/
https://assemblyinbrief.wordpress.com/2014/12/05/the-european-investment-plan-how-big-is-mr-junckers-big-idea/
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/business-innovation-and-skills/inquiries/parliament-2010/ttip1/
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/business-innovation-and-skills/inquiries/parliament-2010/ttip1/
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/environmental-audit-committee/news/ttip-eac-inquiry-launch/
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/parliamentarybusiness/CurrentCommittees/83830.aspx
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/parliamentarybusiness/CurrentCommittees/83830.aspx
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/ld201314/ldselect/ldeucom/179/17902.htm
http://europa.eu/rapid/press-release_IP-14-2128_en.htm


 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 5 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 

 EU-added value (projects in support of EU objectives). 

 Economic viability and value – prioritising projects with high socio-economic returns. 

 Projects that can start at latest within the next three years, i.e. a reasonable expectation 

for capital expenditure in the 2015-2017 period. 

The Commission hopes to have the Fund up and running by mid-2015. 

To inform this process a ‘Task Force’ led by the European Commission, EIB and with 

Member States representatives, undertook a piece of work to identify a potential pipeline of 

projects for the new EFSI. In December the European Commission published the results of 

this work
4

, identifying around 2,000 projects across Europe worth some €1.3 trillion of 

potential investments, out of which over €500 billion worth of projects could potentially be 

implemented over the next three years. The report comes with a ‘disclaimer’ saying that 

the list is not definitive and does not guarantee support, as well as saying it doesn’t 

preclude other initiatives from being included at a later stage. 

The UK submitted a list of potential projects, and within this there were a number from 

Wales (or where Wales was part of a wider UK project). We understand that the Welsh 

project list is drawn from an update to the Welsh Government’s 2012 Strategic Investment 

Plan. The Welsh projects are: 

 Anglesey Energy Island (Integrated suite of investments in low carbon energy (nuclear, 

wind, tidal, biomass and solar), anchored by an £8bn investment in Nuclear).  

 Swansea Bay Tidal Lagoon (Construct a 'proof of concept' tidal lagoon in Swansea Bay 

between the ports of Swansea and Neath). 

 Nuclear development, with three potential projects with a total of 12.2GW capacity 

(Hinkley Point C, Wylfa, and Moorside) reaching investment decision in the near term. 

 Heat network development. A number of large scale heat networks projects are under 

development, including in Stoke-on-Trent, Tees Valley, Manchester, Enfield (London), 

Exeter, Cardiff and Gateshead. 

 Flood and Coastal Risk management (Build defences, sustainable urban drainage 

systems and use land management techniques to prevent flooding, raise awareness of 

flooding and increase resilience to flooding in Wales). 

 Green Growth Fund (To increase and accelerate projects to deliver green investment in 

Wales. Primary focus on encouraging investment in resource efficiency, renewable 

energy generation and waste projects). 

 Environmental Protection Scheme (To contribute to sustainable development by 

increasing the level of environmental protection in Wales). 

 Cardiff Capital Region Metro (The Metro project is a £3bn integrated transport 

programme in South East Wales). 

                                           

4

 See http://europa.eu/rapid/press-release_IP-14-2480_en.htm 

Pack Page 5

http://europa.eu/rapid/press-release_IP-14-2480_en.htm


 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 6 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 

 M4 Corridor around Newport (New Section of Motorway to address resilience and 

capacity issues on the M4 motorway). 

 A465 Capacity and Resilience Enhancements (The scheme, part of the A465 Dualling 

Programme will improve access to the northern part of Blaenau Gwent which will receive 

significant regeneration/ community benefits). 

 A4232 Eastern Bay Link (Upgrade to existing route to link to Central Cardiff Enterprise 

Zone to M4). 

 A55 Capacity and Resilience Enhancements (Removal of missing links to address 

capacity issues and improve resilience to the A55). 

2.3. Work Programme 2015
5

 

The Juncker Investment Plan has received mixed reactions, a number of commentators 

questioning its feasibility. However, it is high on the political agenda at the moment and is 

one of the core priorities of the Work Programme 2015 (WP2015) published by the 

European Commission on 16 December. 

The WP2015 includes a communication (11 pages long) setting out the rationale for the 

choices of actions for 2015, and these are grouped around the ten political priorities of the 

Juncker Commission for 2014-2019. It also includes four supporting annexes, three setting 

out details of actions proposed over the year (including current initiatives that will be 

scrapped/withdrawn) and a fourth annex detailing EU legislation that comes into force 

during 2015 as well as subordinated legislation (implementing and delegated acts) that will 

be adopted during the year. 

The table below draws out those new initiatives for 2015 (from the list of 23 in Annex 1 of 

the Work Programme) of most relevance to the work of Enterprise and Business Committee. 

Looking at these in more detail:

                                           

5

 See: http://ec.europa.eu/atwork/key-documents/index_en.htm  

Pack Page 6

http://ec.europa.eu/atwork/key-documents/index_en.htm


 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 7 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 
 

Table 1: selection of most relevant new initiatives (of the 23 proposed in Annex 1 of the European Commission Work 

Programme 2015) to Enterprise and Business Committee 

WP 2015 Initiative (with Short description Scope for Committee involvement 

Investment Plan for Europe: See section 2.2 above. Launched 

November 2014. Legislative proposals to be published shortly – will be 

a top priority for 2015 as the focus is on supporting investments 

during 2015-2017 period. 

Monitoring Welsh Government (and UK Government) engagement 

with this initiative, including progress in the list of potential 

projects submitted to the Commission at the end of 2014. 

Potentially part of a wider piece of work looking at the EIB. 

Promoting integration and employability in the labour market:  

Range of measures to get people into employment, focusing on long-

term unemployed, youth unemployment etc. Building on number of 

existing initiatives such as the youth guarantee. 

Explore opportunities and obligations that may come from any 

new initiatives in this area, including link to the implementation 

of employability measures under the European Investment and 

Structural Funds in Wales. 

Labour Mobility Package: Measures to support labour mobility and 

tackle abuse including review of ‘posting of workers’ directive and 

better co-ordination of social security systems across Member States. 

Primarily a non-devolved area. However, may be interest in 

looking at potential impact to the Welsh economy of any changes 

to relevant EU legislation on labour mobility. 

Mid-term review of Europe 2020 

EU’s overarching jobs and growth strategy since 2010 (under 

President Barroso). Mid-term review was launched in 2014 and the 

Commission will present a Communication on the results of this 

during 2015. 

Monitoring Welsh Government participation in the review. 

Considering impact of any changes in the Europe 2020 strategy 

to Wales, in particular the implementation of EU funding 

programmes.  

Trade and Investment Strategy for Jobs and Growth: this is broader 

than TTIP (EU/US negotiations). However, TTIP is a key element of the 

trade agenda for 2015, with the Commission aiming to conclude 

negotiations during 2015, a timeframe the European Council endorsed 

in December 2014. 

Primarily focus on the economic questions – impact on Welsh 

business, Welsh Government’s approach to trade and 

investment. Questions around public service provision likely to 

be of more interest to other Committees (e.g. Health and Social 

Care Committee). 

Digital Single Market (DSM) Package: One of Juncker’s ten priorities 

is to develop the digital single market, which along with energy union, 

is seen as a key strategic area for stimulating economic growth and 

job creation. 

As with the Energy Union and reforms to the Single Market, the 

Digital Single Market is a major pan-EU initiative. As such the 

scope for influence and input from Wales is likely to be limited. 

However, the Committee may be interested to look at how this 

fits with Welsh Government priorities. 

Strategic Framework for the Energy Union: will focus on energy 

supply security, integration of national energy markets, reduction in 

European energy demand, decarbonising the energy mix and 

promoting research and innovation in the energy field. It will include 

revision of the EU Emissions Trading System. 

Environment and Sustainability Committee would have lead 

responsibility for this within the Assembly. However, given the 

strong economic dimension Enterprise and Business Committee 

may wish to keep an eye on this dossier. 

P
ack P

age 7



 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 8 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 

Of the 80 current legislative proposals to be withdrawn or threatened with withdrawal 

(as set out in Annex 2 of WP2015) the Committee’s attention is drawn to: 

 Waste circular economy (legislative package): originally published in 2014 this will be 

withdrawn and replaced by a ‘more ambitious’ package of proposals to be presented 

during 2015. Within the Assembly this dossier is on the radar of Environment and 

Sustainability Committee. However, it is also of potential interest to Enterprise and 

Business Committee given there is a strong economic rationale underpinning this 

review of EU waste legislation, aimed at stimulating innovation, jobs and new 

businesses through the creation of a ‘circular economy’ with more effective use of 

resources. 

3. Latvian EU Presidency (of the Council)
6

 

Latvia holds the EU Presidency of the Council for the first six months of 2015 (Luxembourg 

for the second half of the year). The EU Presidency chairs the Council, which means it 

steers the day-to-day work of the Member State governments’ engagement in the EU policy 

and law-making process. The EU Presidency also represents the Council in negotiations 

with the European Parliament and European Commission on legislative proposals. 

The Latvian Presidency will focus on three priorities, each of which has strong read across 

to the ten political priorities of the Juncker Commission: 

 Competitive Europe: four main topics on the agenda (i) Juncker’s Investment Plan; (ii) 

Single Market reforms (iii) better regulation to enhance industrial competitiveness (iv) 

energy union 

 Digital Europe: five main topics (i) data protection (ii) cybersecurity (iii) initial 

discussions on Digital Single Market strategy (iv) progress negotiations on the 

telecommunications market package (v) advance digitalisation of Europe including 

digital skills, eGovernment 

 Engaged Europe: external policy dimension. Among the topics the most relevant to this 

Committee is the TTIP negotiations 

In theory this should mean progress during the Latvian Presidency on these area, although 

this will clearly depend on the substance of the discussions. 

4. EU Funding 

The Ministerial scrutiny session with Jane Hutt AM will cover the Welsh Government’s 

preparations for the new European and Structural Investment Programmes in Wales, as well 

as follow up the Committee’s inquiries into Horizon 2020 and EU Funding Opportunities 

2014-2020. These are, therefore, not covered further in this paper. 

5. Eurozone crisis, reform of economic governance, Banking Union 

During the previous European Parliament and European Commission (2009-2014) there 

was a plethora of legislation in the financial services and banking sector, aimed at 

introducing a stronger regulatory framework to address some of the perceived causes of 

                                           

6

 See Latvian EU Presidency web-site: https://eu2015.lv/ 

Pack Page 8

https://eu2015.lv/


 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 9 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 

the financial and economic crisis. This was accompanied by a drive to strengthen the 

economic governance of the Eurozone (and the wider EU), within the context of the 

financial rescue packages put together for individual countries (e.g. Greece, Portugal, 

Ireland) including EU and IMF guarantees aimed at avoiding financial meltdown, and which 

with time has moved towards a structured and more ‘long-term’ approach to reform of the 

EMU. 

The European Commission’s ‘Economic Governance’ web-pages explain this process in 

detail, including the different legislative packages (the so-called Six Pack and Two-Pack) 

introduced over this period, and the so-called Fiscal Compact Treaty (agreed as an 

‘international treaty’ in December 2011 and later signed by 25 Member States – UK and 

Czech Republic did not sign it). These translate into a monitoring, prevention and 

correction mechanism for EU economic governance, with particular measures for the 

Eurozone area, and include actions to strengthen at EU level budgetary surveillance, 

introduction of budget breaks, and stronger alignment of budgetary planning cycles.
7

 

One important aspect of this process was the creation of the European Semester
8

 agreed 

in 2010 (and introduced in 2011), as an annual cycle to strengthen co-ordination between 

economic policies at EU and at Member State level. The European Commission publishes an 

Annual Growth Survey, an Alert Mechanism (concerning public deficits/expenditure) and 

Employment Guidelines to launch this cycle, the latest versions published in November 

2014. These are used to inform the Stability and Growth Programmes/National Reform 

Programmes of Member States, and include country specific recommendations and 

guidelines for individual Member States to take action. These are considered European 

Council at its Spring meeting and subsequently agreed by EU Heads of State and 

Government in June. Member States are then responsible for implementing agreed 

priorities and actions. 

The Welsh Government, along with the other Devolved Administrations, participates in the 

process for evaluating and revising the UK National Reform Programme, with the UK 

Government leading this process. 

For the 2014-2020 European Investment and Structural Funds a direct link has been made 

between this economic policy cycle and the different programmes, including the 

introduction of macro-economic conditionalities aimed at ensuring the programmes 

support delivery of agreed economic reforms and priorities. 

6. Other areas of potential interest 

6.1. Working time directive 

The European Commission launched a consultation on the review of the Working Time 

Directive in December 2014 (closes March 2015). This dossier has a long history, following 

a failed attempt to agree revisions to the original Directive in 2006-2009 period, with the 

UK one of the Member States forming a blocking minority. Since 2010 the dossier has 

                                           

7

 See http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/economic_governance/index_en.htm  

8

 See http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/economic_governance/the_european_semester/index_en.htm  

Pack Page 9

http://www.eurozone.europa.eu/media/304649/st00tscg26_en12.pdf
http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/economic_governance/index_en.htm
http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/economic_governance/the_european_semester/index_en.htm


 

Enquiry no: 15/0059/ Gregg Jones 10 12 January 2015 

 

EU Office 

Swyddfa UE 

 

 

stalled, and the European Commission is once again looking at the case for revising the 

legislation. 

This will be of particular interest to the NHS in Wales, as potential changes to definitions of 

‘on-call’ time and implications to emergency services in particular, were central concerns 

for the UK Government in the past. However, it is a dossier that the Enterprise and Business 

Committee may also wish to keep on its radar. 

6.2. Murco oil refinery 

In December the Research Service prepared a blog on the closure of the Murco Oil 

Refinery, following the discussions in plenary with the Minister for Economy, Science and 

Transport Edwina Hart AM on potential EU funding support that could be available to assist 

the workers facing redundancy. 

The Research Service blog looks in particular at the European Globalisation Adjustment 

Fund (EGF), which was established in 2006 to provide support to people losing their jobs 

because of major structural changes in world trade patterns owing to globalisation. 

Funding can be made available when a large company shuts down or production is moved 

outside the EU, or when jobs are lost as a result of the global economic and financial crisis. 

To date the UK has not submitted an application to the EGF. 

7. Committee of the Regions 

The Committee of the Regions, contingent on formal agreement being confirmed by the 

Council of the European Union, will commence a new five-year mandate (for 2015-2019 

period) shortly. This means there will be a new membership, including a new Welsh 

delegation, as well as changes to the committee structures (known as ‘Commissions’). 

The Welsh members of the CoR will be (three of whom are incumbents): 

 Mick Antoniw AM (full member): he is hoping to sit on the SEDEC Commission which 

deals with social affairs, education, employment and culture. He also hopes to continue 

as a member of CORLEAP, the ‘Eastern Partnership’ bringing together representatives of 

the former Soviet bloc countries bordering or close to the eastern border of the EU. 

 Rhodri Glyn Thomas AM (alternate member) is hoping to sit on the ENVI Commission, 

which deals with environment, energy and climate change. 

 Councillor Bob Bright (full member) is hoping to sit on the COTER Commission, which 

deals with Cohesion Policy (Structural Funds), Territorial Cohesion and budget. 

 Councillor Ronnie Hughes (alternate member) is hoping to sit on the NAT 

Commission, which deals with agriculture, rural, fisheries and maritime affairs. 

The allocation of Commissions to the UK members will be confirmed at a UK delegation 

meeting in LGA House, London on 23 January. 

The first plenary session of the new CoR was originally scheduled to take place in Brussels 

from 11-13 February. However, it is not clear if the Council will have formally approved the 

new mandate in time for this session to take place. If this doesn’t happen, then the first 

plenary is unlikely to take place before March. 

Pack Page 10

https://assemblyinbrief.wordpress.com/2014/11/21/murco-could-affected-workers-get-more-help-from-the-eu/
https://assemblyinbrief.wordpress.com/2014/11/21/murco-could-affected-workers-get-more-help-from-the-eu/


Document is Restricted

Pack Page 13

Agenda Item 3



 

 1 

Enterprise and Business Committee 21 January 2014 
 
Update on European Funding from Jane Hutt AM, Minister for Finance 
and Government Business  
 
Evidence Paper 
 
Introduction 
 
1. This paper provides an update on the EU Structural Funds programmes 

2014-2020, Horizon 2020, and other EU funding opportunities, including 
preparations for the European Territorial Co-operation programmes 2014–
2020.  
 

European Structural Funds  
 

2. Following detailed negotiations with the Commission on the Operational 
Programmes for Wales and the agreement of UK Partnership Agreement 
(UKPA) on 29 October 2014, the European Regional Development Fund 
(ERDF) and European Social Fund (ESF) Structural Fund programmes 
were approved on 20 November and 5 December 2014, respectively.  
 

3. This means that Wales was the first nation in the UK and among the first in 
the EU to have its programmes approved. Worth nearly £2 billion, the 
programmes will drive a total investment of some £2.9bn (i.e. with match 
funding) and will help us deliver on our shared goals across Government 
for sustainable economic growth and jobs. 

 

4. The investments agreed reflect the Commission and Welsh Government’s 
focus on greater concentration and integration of EU funds to maximise 
their impact.  
 

5. The ERDF investments include:  
 

 a 45% increase in funding for Research and Innovation, bringing the 
total EU funds to £310m; 

 a significant boost in funding for SME Competitiveness, including 
business finance, worth £198m; 

 £439m for Connectivity and Urban Development, including EU 
investment worth £252m for transformational public transport 
investments such as the Metro; 

 a significant increase in funding for renewable energy and energy 
efficiency, with £154m available, and a particular focus on Marine 
Energy. 

 
6. The ESF programmes include:  

 

 some £190m (22% of ESF funds), to tackle poverty in Wales by 
supporting people into sustainable employment, helping the most 
marginalised and disadvantaged individuals; 

Pack Page 30



 

 2 

 a 20% increase in support, leading to £353 million of EU 
investment, to develop employee skills that will support an 
innovative and high quality knowledge based economy;  

 over £240m to help young people across Wales return to work and 
increase attainment levels, including in Science Technology 
Engineering and Maths subjects; and  

 specific investments to enhance gender equality in the workplace.  
 

7. A 10 percentage point increase in EU intervention rates was also secured 
with the Commission which will significantly reduce programme match 
funding requirements.  
 

Delivery arrangements  
 

8. Preparatory work has been underway for several months in readiness of 
the approval of the programmes, including the development of a number of 
‘backbone’ project proposals.    
 

9. The Wales Programme Monitoring Committee 2014-2020 also met in 
shadow form several times last year and on 5 December, the formally 
constituted PMC agreed the prioritisation and selection criteria for use by 
WEFO in the approval of EU funds.  
 

10. These preparations paved the way for the announcement on 15 December 
of the first project approval, the £35m Aberystwyth University’s Innovation 
and Enterprise Campus (£20 million of EU funds).  With more project 
proposals at an advanced stage of development, further project approvals 
will be announced over the coming months. 
  

11. Work has also been underway to introduce simplified costs to help lighten 
the administrative burden on beneficiaries by shifting the focus from 
demonstrating expenditure to a more results-oriented system. This 
approach, as well as the Commission’s introduction of a programme 
‘performance reserve’ (amounting to six per cent of the programme value), 
reflects the stronger focus on achieving outcomes and results from EU 
investments.  

 
Horizon 2020 
 
12. Horizon 2020 is the EU’s largest Research and Innovation programme, 

with €79 billion of funding available over seven years. The programme was 
launched in Wales in November 2013, and although the first substantial 
feedback from the Commission on Horizon 2020 performance is not 
expected until the Spring,  there is a strong perception that Horizon 2020 is 
as or even more competitive than its predecessor Framework Programme 
7 (FP7). The potential impact on Welsh performance, however, should be 
offset by the Welsh Government’s measures to build on lessons learned 
from FP7 and the notable increase in enthusiasm among Welsh 
stakeholders in accessing Horizon 2020. 
 

Pack Page 31



 

 3 

13. Measures to build on lessons learned include, for example, CM 
International’s Scoping Study1, which was commissioned by the Welsh 
Government to seek the views of a wide range of research and innovation 
stakeholders on the advice and support needed by Welsh organisations. 
 

14. The Study endorsed the approach that the Welsh Government’s Horizon 
2020 Unit has taken in working closely alongside key stakeholders in 
Wales, the UK and Europe to maximise Horizon 2020 opportunities. It also 
identified five main ‘gaps’ where  the Unit and/or stakeholders could 
provide appropriate support or services: 

 

 An intelligent clearing house for information and advice; 

 Turning interested organisations into applicants; 

 Building successful consortia and partnerships; 

 Visibility, engagement and excellence; 

 Smart specialisation, Horizon 2020 and the stairway to excellence. 
 
15. The Study made recommendations on how to address these ‘gaps’ and 

provides a sound basis for any further decisions on the support structure in 
Wales. 
 

16. The Study also recognised the important role that the Welsh Government’s 
SCoRE Cymru (Supporting Collaborative Research and innovation in 
Europe) scheme has in supporting Welsh organisations to access Horizon 
2020.  Now worth £100,000 annually, the fund provides applicants with up 
to £1,000 for travel costs and up to £10,000 for bid writing costs.  Since its 
inception, WEFO has awarded £103,000 to 28 organisations, 78% of that 
funding going to Welsh SMEs. 
 

17. WEFO’s Horizon 2020 Unit is continuing to work closely with stakeholders 
including the higher education sector in Wales, Innovate UK and 
Enterprise Europe Network Wales to deliver a series of targeted 
awareness raising and technical events, such as those held in Cardiff in 
April and Llanwrst in November last year.  Following the programme 
launch event in Wales in November 2013, the first of a series of annual 
Horizon 2020 events will take place in Cardiff on 18 February. There is 
also a greater focus on promoting the expertise of Wales in Brussels and 
building synergies between Structural Funds and Horizon 2020 
investments.  For example, WEFO has been discussing with the Office of 
the Chief Scientific Adviser for Wales on the potential for the Welsh 
Fellowship Scheme to access both Horizon 2020 and Structural Funds so 
that it can attract more talented researchers to Wales and further build 
research excellence. 
 

18. The Horizon 2020 Unit is also actively considering several other actions in 
response to the Study, including the: 

                       
1 Horizon 2020 Scoping Study, CM International, May 2014 

(http://wefo.wales.gov.uk/publications/publications/monitoringevaluation/programmeevaluations/horiz

on2020scopingstudy/) 

Pack Page 32



 

 4 

 

 development and promotion of a ‘support network’ for the sharing of 
knowledge and best practice between existing and emerging research 
and innovation stakeholders in Wales and Brussels; 

 introduction of one-to-one support for Welsh businesses on Horizon 
2020 opportunities; 

 development of a ‘community of practice’ of Welsh Horizon 2020 
experts and evaluators to both increase Wales’ influence in the 
delivery of Horizon 2020 and provide insights for the wider Welsh 
Horizon 2020 community. 

 
Other EU funding opportunities, including European Territorial Co-
operation (ETC) Programmes  

 
Directly Managed EU funding programmes  
 

19. In addition to Horizon 2020, other EU funding programmes directly 
managed by the Commission offer important investment opportunities in 
the areas of business competitiveness (COSME); creative and cultural 
industries (Creative Europe); transport, energy and digital networks 
(Connecting Europe); conservation and the environment (LIFE+); and 
studying opportunities abroad (ERASMUS+).  
 

20. Building on recent Assembly Committee report recommendations to 
ensure these funding opportunities are promoted and fully maximised by 
Welsh organisations, a panel of EU Funding Ambassadors was 
established last December comprising Dr Grahame Guilford, Dr Hywel 
Ceri Jones, and Gaynor Richards MBE. Drawing on their knowledge and 
experience of working within the private, public and third sectors, and of 
European funding matters generally, they will help strengthen the 
partnership arrangements needed to help the Welsh Government in 
championing these EU funds.  
 
2014-2020 European Territorial Co-operation Programmes (ETC). 
 

21. Four of the five main ETC programmes 2014-2020 in which Wales will 
participate have been formally submitted to the Commission, with 
negotiations to commence shortly.  Discussions on the Atlantic Area 
programme between the participating Member States and the Managing 
Authority in Porto, Portugal are continuing; the programme will be 
submitted as early as possible this year. 

 
22. The Welsh Government has agreed the UK Government’s proposed 

funding allocations for the respective ETC programmes.  This includes the 
Ireland/Wales programme 2014–2020, which received the highest 
increase in the UK allocation (23% increase compared to 2007-2013) for 
cross-border programmes involving the UK.  
 

23. The final ERDF values for each of the main programmes are:   
 

Pack Page 33



 

 5 

 Ireland Wales Cross-border: €79 million       

 Atlantic Area Transnational: €140 million 

 North-West Europe Transnational: €396 million 

 Interreg Europe Inter-regional: €359 million  

 URBACT Inter-regional: €74 million  
 
ETC Scoping Study and Strategy 2014-2020 
 

24. An ETC Scoping Study, commissioned by WEFO to seek views from 
programme partners about their experiences and involvement in the ETC 
programmes, was published in late 2014. 
 

25. WEFO is considering the findings of the study to help inform a refreshed 
ETC Strategy for maximising opportunities among Welsh partners in the 
ETC programmes; the strategy will be completed early this year.  

 
Ireland/Wales Co-operation Programme  
 

26. WEFO will be the Managing Authority for the Ireland/Wales programme 
2014-2020, and is leading on its development and delivery preparations in 
liaison with Irish and Welsh partners.   
 

27. The Ireland/Wales Co-operation programme 2014-2020 was submitted to 
the Commission by the regulatory deadline of 22 September 2014 with 
formal approval expected by March.  
 

28. Worth €100 million (ERDF €79m), the Ireland/Wales programme will 
involve a greater concentration of investments, as follows:  

 

 Cross-border Innovation;  

 Adaptation of the Irish Sea and Coastal Communities to Climate 
Change and Cultural  

 Natural Resources and Heritage.  
 
29. Given the maritime nature of the border between Ireland and Wales, the 

benefits which can be derived from the Irish Sea will be a central focus for 
programme investments. 

 
30. Preparatory work on the delivery arrangements of the Ireland/Wales 

programme include the composition of the Programme Monitoring 
Committee which will be concluded early this year. A programme launch 
event for Irish and Welsh stakeholders will also be held in Wales this 
Spring. 

 
 
 
 

Pack Page 34



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 36

Agenda Item 5


	Agenda
	2 EU update
	3 EU Follow-up scrutiny
	EBC(4)-02-15 (p.2) - Minister for Finance and Government Business

	5 Forward Work Programme

